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REPORT ON OPERATIONS

Our Boarding Service

The Country High School Hostels Authority provides a boarding service on behalf of the
State Government and the people of Western Australia to families living in remote parts of
the State. The Government provides capital and supplementary funding to the Authority for
the establishment, operation and maintenance of residential colleges for geographically
isolated students.

The Authority’s residential college boarding service exists to provide an opportunity for 
isolated students to attend a school where they can grow and learn in the company of others.
Almost all of the students who access the service do so for their secondary schooling. With
many Western Australian students living great distances from a secondary school, the
Authority’s residential colleges provide a necessary and vital service to families who want
their children to undertake their secondary studies at a school rather than by distance
education. To provide students with stability and continuity during their secondary
schooling, all of the Authority’s residential colleges operate in conjunction with a nearby 
senior high school.

With local community support residential college and school staff work closely together for
the benefit of students from remote locations. In so doing they have played an important part
in the achievement of the Government’s 2003-2006 Better Planning: Better Services planning
framework objective, namely, ’to enhance the quality of life and wellbeing of all people throughout 
Western Australia..’ 

Our Mission

The Authority is committed to the achievement of high standards and being recognised
throughout Australia as being at the forefront in the care and development of students
boarding away from home. We believe in the potential of all our students and are actively
working to support them in their personal development.

Our Values

Mutual Respect
All students and staff feel respected and supported.

Self-fulfilment & Success
All students and staff feel positive about themselves and their future prospects.

High Standards
All students and staff set and achieve high standards.

Fairness
All students and staff think and act fairly in the pursuit of self-fulfilment and high standards.

Co-operation
Students, staff and parents work together in achieving their objectives.
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Desired Outcome

The desired outcome for the Country High School Hostels Authority is the provision of
quality accommodation, care and services for isolated students who have to board away from
home to attend school.

The Authority’s Service

The Authority’s service consists of the establishment, operation and maintenance of 
residential colleges that provide quality accommodation, care and services for isolated
students. In 2006-07 the Authority had residential colleges providing a boarding service in
close proximity to senior high schools, primary schools, and TAFE colleges in eight country
centres. It also initiated a new boarding service in City Beach in support of country students
offered places in metropolitan gifted and talented education programs.

Adequate levels of provision relative to demand, and parent satisfaction with the boarding
service, are the key indicators of the Authority’s effectiveness in the achievement of the 
Government’s desired outcome.

Effectiveness Indicator–Level of Provision (Audited)

Enrolments in 2007 are compared with the number of places available at each residential
college. Overall occupancy was at 84% on the census date relative to an 82% target.

The comparison figures indicate that there was sufficient provision at the commencement of
2007 to meet the demand from isolated children for access to the primary and secondary
schooling services available in these country centres.

Level of Provision - 2007

As at 28 February 2007
Residential
College

2007
Capacity

2007
Occupancy

2007
Enrolment

Previous
5-Year Average

Enrolment
Albany 130 98% 128 107
City Beach 20 85% 17 0
Esperance 100 98% 98 85
Geraldton 140 96% 134 115
Katanning 60 40% 24 25
Merredin 82 43% 35 39
Narrogin 249 88% 220 231
Northam 50 96% 48 39
St James, Moora 52 75% 39 50

Totals 883 84% 743 691
Notes: City Beach commenced operations in February 2007. Minor interior
modifications increased the boarding capacity at Geraldton from 124 to 140.
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The needs of isolated families are well represented by the Isolated Children’s Parents’ 
Association.  In accordance with this Association’s request, the boarding allowances provided 
by the Federal and State Governments are not restricted to the nearest boarding facility but
allow a family to enrol their child at any boarding facility in the State. As a consequence,
geographically isolated families know that they need to book early if they want to secure
accommodation at the boarding facility of their choice.

Similarly, the Authority allows families in receipt of a boarding allowance to enrol their
children at any of its residential colleges. It makes no guarantee that a student can gain entry
to his or her nearest residential college and families need to book early to secure a place at the
residential college of their choice. However, to ensure a return on the capital investment
involved, asset planning associated with a college’s operating capacity not only takes account 
of the level of demand at a college but also takes account of the number of students who have
alternative government funded boarding facilities and schools in closer proximity to their
family home.

Output Measure–Quantity: Number of Students

Boarding fee revenue makes up a significant component of the total revenue needed to
provide a residential college service. The target revenue for 2006-07 was set in July 2006 and
based upon an enrolment of 760 students in 2007 which included 20 students enrolling at the
new City Beach Residential College and 40 students enrolling at the new Broome Residential
College.

2006 2007
Target Enrolment 745 760
Actual Enrolment 709 743

The target enrolment proved to be too high when construction delays prevented the Broome
Residential College from commencing operations prior to 30 June 2007. Higher than expected
demand at Albany and Geraldton helped boost the actual enrolment above a revised target
inclusive of all residential colleges except Broome.
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Student Enrolments: 1997 - 2007
The following table shows comparative student enrolments for the first terms of school years
1997 to 2007.

ENROLMENTS (as at end of February)

Residential
College

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Albany 105 103 107 104 93 97 111 111 102 115 128

City Beach 17

Esperance 61 68 93 86 68 74 74 74 96 106 98

Geraldton 138 124 104 104 88 112 115 106 124 116 134

Katanning 53 50 47 36 38 33 29 28 19 15 24

Merredin 56 66 54 54 64 56 35 37 37 30 35

Narrogin 240 243 244 248 256 233 221 214 241 247 220

Northam 55 50 47 43 43 38 44 37 36 38 48

St James’, 
Moora

41 37 45 50 41 41 59 55 53 42 39

Totals 749 741 741 725 691 684 688 662 708 709 743
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Effectiveness Indicator - Parent Satisfaction (Audited)

The Authority initiated a Parent Satisfaction Survey in 1994 and has surveyed parents since
then on a biennial basis.

During Term 2, 2006 the Authority conducted its seventh survey. Parents of students at all
eight country residential colleges were surveyed regarding the quality of the services and
care provided and the data was aggregated to provide an overall rating. Five hundred and
sixty five families were surveyed. Of these, two hundred and sixty families (46.02%) returned
forms and provided ratings. The standard error rate was less than ±5%.

Parent satisfaction is one measure of the quality of the Authority’s service. Our target for
2006 was to achieve a 90% rating. In percentage terms, 91.09% of respondents rated college
services and care as of good, high or very high quality and 99.61% rated college services and
care as adequate or better. The data indicate that the Authority can be 95 percent certain
that between 86% - 96% of all parents rated college care and services as of good, high or
very high quality.

The overall rating for the quality of service and care provided for 2006 is compared to the
2004 survey in the following graph:
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Recurrent and Capital Cash Expenditure 2006-2007

The following is a summary of recurrent and capital cash expenditure that totalled
$17,370,137 in 2006-2007. The revenue expended includes the recurrent and capital funds
provided to the Authority by Parliament and the boarding fees collected by residential
colleges.

Recurrent and Capital Cash Expenditure

Capital Works
36%

Debt Servicing
7%

College Operations
40%

Administration
3%

Capital User Charge
11%

Maintenance
3%

Cost of Output

2006-2007
Actual
$’000

2006-2007
Budget
$’000

Total Cost of Output 11,522 12,328

Less Operating Revenues 7,831 6,343

Net Cost of Output 3,691 5,985

The actual net cost was less than the estimated net cost due to the following:

 Lower than expected employee expenses at Broome due to delay in the opening of
the college.

 Debt servicing costs and depreciation were less due to delays in capital projects at
Broome and Albany.

 The contribution of $1.6m from the Catholic Education Office increased operating
revenues.
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Efficiency Indicator–Cost Per Student (Audited)

The cost per student is a key indicator of the economy of the Authority’s residential college 
operations.

Per student operating costs for each of the eight residential colleges for the 2006-2007 financial
year, which include a pro-rata component of depreciation costs and central office costs, are
compared. The residential colleges are arranged according to their enrolments from lowest
(City Beach) to highest (Narrogin).

Cost per Student
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The table illustrates the economies of scale achieved in colleges with 100 or more students.
Cost per student variations from year to year are mainly a reflection of the enrolment relative
to staffing which cannot be reduced until contractual terms of employment allow for
adjustment. The City Beach Residential College has not been operational for the full period.
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Efficiency Indicator - Average Cost per Student (Audited)

The cost per student over the past four years is illustrated in the following table. The data
shows that the cost per student has increased due to the opening of a new college at City
Beach and start up operational costs at Broome which will open in July 2007.

2006-2007
Actual

2006-2007
Budget

2005-2006
Actual

2004-2005
Actual

2003-2004
Actual

Expenditure $000's 11,522 12,328 10,309 10,272 9,350

Enrolment 743 760 709 708 662

Cost per Student 15,508 16,221 $14,540 $14,509 $14,125

The 2006-07 estimate enrolment of 743 was less than the target enrolment of 760. The impact
of the non-commencement of operations in Broome was offset by higher than expected
enrolments at other locations.

Boarding Cost

The Authority continued to provide value for money for isolated families seeking to board
their children away from home to gain access to preferred educational opportunities.

In 2007 the Authority's boarding and amenities fee was increased to $8,635 which included a
$300 amenities fee component and a GST component (on meals) of $112. The fee, which was
applicable at all residential colleges, covered a student's room, meals, care and supervision
for seven days a week during the school year.

Boarding Cost (1997-2007)

Annual Boarding Cost after Allowances 1997-2007
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Note: The fee charged in 2005, 2006 and 2007 included an amenities fee. Prior to 2007 the amenities
fee was set by each college board of management and the amount reflected in 2005 and 2006 is
an average across the colleges. In 2007 all colleges agreed to an uniform amenities fee.
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The cost of boarding is substantially reduced for families eligible for assistance through a
number of State and Commonwealth Government schemes. Assistance schemes include the
Assistance for Isolated Children boarding allowances, the State Boarding Away From Home
Allowance, ABSTUDY and the Youth Allowance.

The net boarding cost in 2007 for an isolated student receiving the non-means tested
Assistance for Isolated Children allowance of $6,396 and the State Student Boarding Away from
Home allowance of $1,155, was $1,084. This equated to $27.10 per week over the 40-week
school year. By comparison the net cost to parents in 1997 was $53 per week.

The Authority seeks to ensure that its residential colleges operate economically and that the
boarding fee, which is reviewed annually, is reasonable and affordable. The objective is to
ensure that the cost of boarding away for geographically isolated students is comparable with
the cost of housing, feeding, clothing and providing educational resources at home (eg.
books, computers, study and recreation facilities). As the graph on the preceding page
shows, the cost of boarding became significantly less in 2005 when the Federal and State
Governments substantially increased their boarding allowances.

Staffing Cost per Student

The staffing cost per student at each of the eight colleges for the 2006-2007 financial year is
presented in the following graph. The residential colleges are arranged according to their
enrolment from lowest to highest.
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1 The data demonstrate how greater cost efficiency is achieved in colleges with higher
enrolments, but that no substantial savings have been achieved beyond an enrolment of 100
students.

2 A lower than expected enrolment in 2007 at the Narrogin Residential College and St James
Residential College (Moora) resulted in higher costs relative to the previous year.
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OUR MANAGEMENT FOCUS

Broome Residential College

Over the past twelve months the Country High School Hostels Authority continued to work
with the Catholic Education Office on the development of a new residential college in
Broome. The builder was unable to complete the construction in time for the commencement
of the 2007 school year and the works have progressed much more slowly than expected. As
at 30th June construction had not progressed to the stage that allowed for operations to
commence.

The student and staff accommodation components are now expected to be ready for use in
time for the commencement of school term three on 24 July, 2007. Construction of the
administration, catering, laundry and indoor recreation component will continue into term
three and the builder has indicated that construction of this component is expected to be
completed by late-September. In the meantime the staff will use other facilities and services
in Broome to meet their catering, laundry, administration and recreation needs.

This new residential college will serve students from outlying towns, communities and
locations throughout the Kimberley region who have no local secondary school. Currently,
many students from this region board away in Perth, Darwin, Meekatharra, Geraldton,
Coolgardie and Esperance to attend a secondary school which meets their needs. The Broome
Residential College is a joint capital project between the Government and the Catholic
Education Office and as such it will provide a boarding service for students enrolling at either
the Broome Senior High School or St Mary’s Catholic College. This public-private joint
venture, the first of its kind in student boarding, is helping Broome and the Kimberley region
gain vital infrastructure that otherwise might not have been economically feasible.

Registrations for this new boarding service have been high. Together, the Government and
the Catholic Education Office have committed an additional $4 million to increase the
boarding capacity from 40 to 72 students over the 2007-08 financial year. When these
additions have been completed the new residential college will represent a $13 million dollar
investment in better educational opportunities for Kimberley students.

Student Accommodation for Gifted and Talented Students

From the beginning of 2007, the Country High School Hostels Authority has been utilising a
boarding facility built by the International School on the former City Beach Senior High
School site to provide a boarding service for country students offered places at Perth Modern
School, and, space permitting, at other metropolitan gifted and talented education program
senior high schools. This boarding facility has the capacity to cater for up to 100 country
students gaining entry to these programs.

An alternative option to build a new boarding facility on the Perth Modern School site for
these students was put aside when it became apparent that the International School had no
further use for its City Beach facility and that under the terms of the lease, it became the
property of the Government and available for use by the Country High School Hostels
Authority.

This new boarding service will help ensure that location does not prevent gifted and talented
country students from participating in appropriate educational programs.
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Albany Residential College

To address cost escalation the Government increased its allocation over the next three years
for improvements and additions to the Albany Residential College. In addition, the
Government agreed to accept a capital contribution from the Catholic Education Office for the
construction of an additional student accommodation block to secure access to 24 beds for
students attending St Joseph’s College.The planned works will see the senior students living
in state of the art, single room accommodation and the younger students living in
significantly upgraded shared accommodation. The planned works will convert a facility,
which was originally built to accommodate 72 boys, into a modern residential college for 144
male and female secondary school students.

The project, backed by $14.4 million in capital funding, was put out to tender on 16 May with
tenders due early in the 2007-08 financial year.

Other Capital Improvements

Improvements to the Northam Residential College include a new residence for the manager,
the conversion of single accommodation to family accommodation and a new swimming pool
for the students.

Improvements to the St James Residential College in Moora have seen the conversion of some
of the female student accommodation from dormitories to single rooms and the procurement
of new accommodation suitable for a member of staff with family. The vacated single staff
accommodation will be converted to student accommodation over the next twelve months.

Both of these residential colleges now have suitable, good standard accommodation which
helps attract and retain live-in staff.

Personnel Screening

The Country High School Hostels Authority (CHSHA) initiated criminal conviction screening
for all new staff in 1991. At the same time it became policy for any and all allegations of
sexual misconduct to be referred to the Police for investigation. All students and parents
were made aware of this policy and of the Authority’s commitment to the safety of children 
entrusted to the care of its staff during the school year.

In 2006 the CHSHA determined that it would require all of its personnel to be screened using
the Department of Education and Training prescribed Crimtrac process as it applies to people
working either as paid employees or volunteers in education and training sector operations
under that agency’s jurisdiction.  All CHSHA personnel gained a clearance.  In addition, in 
accordance with new legislative requirements, all CHSHA personnel will be required to
obtain a Working with Children clearance over the next twelve months.

During 2006-07 it became policy for all CHSHA personnel (employees and volunteers) to be
re-screened every three years and to gain both an ‘education and training’ clearance and a 
Working with Children clearance.
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Strategic Planning

Because the Authority operates within the Government’s education and training portfolio the 
Authority’s 2005-2007 strategic plan was developed in the context of the Government’s 
strategic planning framework ‘Better Planning: Better Services’(2003) and the Department of
Education and Training’s ‘Plan for Government Schools’(2004-2007).

Significant Issues and Trends

Within this planning context the Authority identified a number of significant issues in
education and in relation to its boarding operations for attention over the 2005-07 period.
These included:

 creating an enhanced social boarding experience (greater student involvement in
boarding community operations);

 reviewing and monitoring the impact of an anticipated increase in the school leaving age
on current boarding capacities and on student management;

 changing needs and patterns of demand for a boarding service (increasing demand in the
Kimberley region with more families preferring the education on offer in Broome over
what is locally available; an increase in the population in Ravensthorpe and Hopetoun in
support of a new mining venture with implications for nearby residential colleges; and a
decrease in demand in parts of the agricultural region);

 exploring additional partnership opportunities with non-government school education
providers to improve operational viability and sustainability;

 service expansion opportunities (broadening the scope of operations; international
student exchange initiatives and exploring metropolitan interest in a country boarding
experience); and

 factors impacting on facility design (improvements in the physical boarding environment
in line with current community expectations including provision for universal access; and
attention to improved energy and water use and waste management).

Issues and Trends identified for 2006-07 were:

 An increase in the number of year 11 and 12 boarders flowing on from the increase in the
school leaving age.

 Changing community expectations being reflected in both public and private sector
boarding facilities with more students being housed in single and shared bedrooms
rather than in dormitories.

 Families being increasingly attracted to boarding options closer to home where these give
them access to quality secondary schooling.

 More students with mental health conditions requiring additional support from
residential college staff and mental health services in country centres.
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Plan Development

The Authority’s residential college operations are most closely linked to the achievement of 
the Government’s Better Planning: Better Services 2003 planning framework goal with respect
to People and Communities, namely, “…to enhance the quality of life and wellbeing of all people
throughout Western Australia”.

In support of this goal the Authority is committed to providing a highly valued boarding
service, which supports students in their personal development and education in a safe and
caring environment.

The Authority’s boarding service complements and supports the Government’s education 
provisions for students where distance otherwise prevents them from having daily access to
their nearest government education or training provider.

The Authority’s staff share the vision of seeing the students in their care working positively 
on their own behalf, and in support of each other, to achieve their personal and group
potential.

Strategic outcomes contained in the strategic plans of the Government and the Department of
Education and Training, which are relevant to the Authority’s operations, have been 
identified and presented in the Authority’s 2005-2007 strategic plan (see below).

2005-2007 Strategic Plan Overview

1 Student Development and Education

Relevant Government and Education and Training Strategic Outcomes
1 High standards of student achievement: academic and social. Motivated and engaged

students.
2 An environment that encourages education, skills and the development of creativity for

competitive advantage. More skilled regional communities.
3 A society that is physically active through its participation and achievement in sport and

recreation.
4 A culturally rich, artistically inspired and intellectually stimulated society.

Objectives

1 Students are actively engaged in making their residential college a great place to live
and learn.

2 Students’ social behaviour and skills are a noted feature of college life.
3 Students are actively engaged in achieving good physical health.
4 Students are actively engaged in learning and well supported by college staff in their

endeavours.
5 Students actively support and accept individual differences.

Achievements
1 All residential colleges have initiated and achieved improved student engagement in

college community affairs. All colleges have identified and supported leadership
training and its application by student councillors and prefects. Students have a key
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role in reviewing and supporting college community policies and codes of conduct
and planning and implementing recreational activities.

2 Students’ positive social behaviour and skills have become a noted feature of college
life. All colleges have placed greater emphasis on acknowledging positive student
behaviour and contributions to their college community.

3 All residential colleges have focussed on and achieved improved student
participation in physical activities.

4 College catering staff have been given training and have been supported by dieticians
to provide healthier meals (i.e. food types, healthy balance and amount) for the
students in residence.

5 Staff have been provided with an overview of further education opportunities for
secondary school graduates and the relevant school achievement prerequisites so that
they could better support students in achieving their education goals.

6 All residential colleges support student learning with regular, quiet study periods;
research resources; assignment presentation resources; academic tutoring; and by
maintaining good communication with their partner school staff in monitoring
student progress.

7 All residential colleges operate under the same set of values and actively practise
support for and acceptance of individual differences. All residential colleges have
implemented processes for dealing with students who do not practise these values.
All colleges have effective anti-bullying processes in place. College supervisory staff
have taken a leadership role and model these values within the college community.

8 Parents have been given the opportunity to rate residential college care and services
and have provided feedback which has helped staff improve their college’s 
operations.

2 Responsible Care

Relevant Government and Education and Training Strategic Outcomes
1 Safe and secure Western Australian communities. Inclusive, safe and stimulating learning

environments
2 Children’s futures supported through effective early intervention and prevention services.

Reduced drug-related harm.
3 A positive difference to the lives of people with disabilities.
4 A society free from racism which facilitates the empowerment of members of all communities

as full and equal members of the Australian community, enjoying the rights and duties of a
shared citizenship. A society where Indigenous Australians have greater economic and social
opportunities.

5 A motivated and capable workforce.

Objectives
1 College staff uphold appropriate standards of care and supervision.
2 College staff have full knowledge of their responsibilities and obligations as care
professionals and of the Authority’s quality assurance processes.  

3 Supervisory staff are appropriately trained and qualified to provide responsible care.
4 All colleges provide an appropriate standard of child protection.
5 Openness to parents and the wider community is a feature of college operations.
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Achievements
1 Staff have worked hard to deliver appropriate standards of care and supervision and

have been given a high rating with 91% of parents rating CHSHA residential care and
services as of good, high, or very high quality.

2 All staff have participated in improvement planning at an annual training seminar
held in each of the past three years.

3 Performance management processes have helped ensure that staff are engaged in
fulfilling their responsibilities and obligations as care professionals.

4 All college supervisory staff have participated in annual training focussing on the
delivery of responsible care.

5 All new college supervisory staff have been required to undertake a formal induction
process and gain the prescribed ‘Certificate in Residential Care’ as part of their 
probationary requirements.

6 By 30 June, thirty-eight of the fifty-eight residential college supervisory staff had
completed the ‘Certificate of Residential Care’ or its equivalent, and sixteen staff were 
in the process of gaining this qualification. This represents a total of over 93% of the
supervisory staff who either had, or were about to acquire, the qualification.

7 In 2006 all CHSHA personnel (staff and volunteers) participated in a criminal
conviction screening process and all were cleared.

8 Specialist training in identifying and supporting students who are at risk of self harm
or suicide was provided to all college supervisory staff in 2005-2006, and a review
was undertaken in early 2006 to identify and plan policy and practice improvements
to be implemented within the next twelve months.

9 All residential colleges have maintained good practice and implemented initiatives
which ensure that their operations are open to parents and the wider community.
Good practice in place includes parent and community representation on college
boards of management, parent induction days, open days and social events, a parent
handbook, regular newsletters for parents, community support with scholarships,
and community use of residential college facilities.

10 Residential college catering staff have implemented new food preparation and meal
management standards with a view to achieving a healthier diet for the students in
residence.

11 All supervisory staff have been actively engaged in boosting student participation in
physical activity to keep students fit and healthy.

12 A independent review of residential college and local service capacity to support
students with mental health management needs was conducted with the assistance of
the Department of Education and Training.

3 Planning and Management

Relevant Government and Education and Training Strategic Outcomes
1 A world-class education system and lifelong learning opportunities for all. Sustainability

informs planning, reporting and decision-making. Agency activities support sustainability.
Staff are empowered to embrace sustainability.

2 Social infrastructure such as schools, health facilities and recreational areas are built and
maintained to a high standard. Sustainability considerations are incorporated into design,
construction, maintenance and operating cost management.

3 Stakeholders and the public are engaged in transparent policy development and decision-
making.
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4 Coordinated, integrated, high quality service delivery to the community. Integration across
agencies where appropriate. An efficient Government sector that provides value for money
service delivery.

5 Effective contributions to global efforts to reduce greenhouse emissions. Effective waste
avoidance and management. Maximise energy and fuel efficiency.

Objectives
1 Service delivery to the community is of high quality, integrated and well coordinated.
2 Asset investment is based upon strategic planning, which supports the Government’s 

strategic outcomes and is in accord with Government asset planning requirements.
3 The built environment is maintained to a high standard and upgraded as necessary to

give appropriate support to students living away from home.
4 Sustainability, cost efficiency and waste avoidance analysis and initiatives are key

deliverables in asset and action planning.

Achievements
1 College Board Members across the residential college system were provided with an

opportunity to discuss and resolve governance issues at a conference held in Albany
in September 2005 and a new information package for College Board Members was
developed and distributed in 2006.

2 The Authority maintains a ten year perspective on future capital investment needs.
3 The Authority has carried out a comprehensive analysis and completed a business

case in accordance with Government asset planning requirements in determining its
capital investment priorities and recommendations to Government.

4 Data has been maintained on the impact of a higher school leaving age on the
demand for boarding places at all residential colleges. Modifications were completed
to create additional student accommodation in time to meet an increase in demand at
Geraldton in 2006. The Authority negotiated the use of a TAFE student
accommodation complex to meet the demand at Albany until new additions can be
constructed.

5 The Authority has been active in negotiating the cost efficient delivery of boarding
services in regional centres. It has entered into capital cost sharing partnerships with
the Catholic Education Office in conjunction with new projects in Broome and
Albany which will deliver proportional access to these services for students attending
public and Catholic schools in these centres. It has held discussions with other
private sector education service providers in relation to similar capital cost sharing
opportunities in Esperance and Geraldton.

6 The Broome and Albany Residential College projects have been planned in
consultation with all stakeholders to ensure that they meet community and user
expectations and relevant design and building standards. Sustainability principles
and access for students with disabilities have been key planning criteria.

7 In 2006-07 improvements to the physical environment were planned and achieved in
consultation with members of the residential college community at the residential
colleges in Northam and Moora.

8 The Authority initiated a new boarding service for country students who gain entry
to Perth Modern School and other metropolitan public school gifted and talented
education programs at the beginning of the 2007 school year.

9 The Narrogin Residential College and the Narrogin Senior High School have initiated
and maintained a reciprocal International student visit program with a secondary
school in Singapore over the past three years. The Authority has established and
maintained an International student boarding fee to support future developments.
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10 The Katanning Residential College has initiated a country excursion experience for
metropolitan school students to improve country student connection with urban
students, to optimise the use of available student accommodation and to improve the
college’s cost effectiveness.

11 The Authority utilised an external audit process undertaken by a qualified building
surveyor to ensure that its residential college maintenance needs were properly
identified and prioritised. By using the same surveyor across all facilities, there was
greater consistency in benchmarking appropriate standards across the Authority’s 
operations and a better capacity to prioritise maintenance needs on a system-wide
basis. In most instances residential college managers used local tradespeople to
achieve the most cost effective maintenance outcome. The maintenance procurement
service provided by the Department of Housing and Works was utilised where the
nature of the works and the detailed documentation associated with the tender
processes justified the extra cost involved.

12 A Sustainability Plan was finalised and all residential college managers and staff
were briefed on the Government’s sustainability goalsin December 2005 and
incorporated sustainability objectives in their annual improvement plans in 2006 and
2007.

13 Sustainability, cost efficiency and waste avoidance analysis has been a significant part
of the planning and design work associated with the Broome Residential College
project. A range of sustainability and waste avoidance initiatives are being
incorporated in the design.

Planning for 2008-2010

In the second half of 2007 the Authority will be preparing its strategic plan for the 2008-2010
triennium with reference to the Government’s Better Planning: Better Futures framework for
the strategic management of the Western Australian public sector.
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ADMINISTRATION

Organisational Structure

CORPORATE SERVICES

SUPERVISOR

SENIOR SUPERVISOR

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT

ANCILLARY STAFF

COLLEGE MANAGER

RESIDENTIAL COLLEGE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY STAFF

DIRECTOR

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

COUNTRY HIGH SCHOOL HOSTELS AUTHORITY

MINISTER FOR EDUCATION AND TRAINING

Responsible Minister

The responsible Minister is the Honourable Mark McGowan, MLA Minister for Education
and Training; South West.

Legislation

The legislative basis for the Authority’s operations and the legislation for which the Authority 
is responsible is the Country High School Hostels Authority Act 1960. In the performance of its
functions, the Authority complies with all relevant State and Commonwealth legislation.

Accountability

The Country High School Hostels Authority consists of seven members. They are
accountable for the agency’s operations and administer its business planning and operations.  
Authority members are appointed on the basis of their association with the conduct of
hostels, their suitability to represent parents of children accommodated in hostels or their
general capacity for community service. At all times one member has to be an officer of the
Public Service.

The Governor of Western Australia appoints members on the nomination of the Minister for
Education and Training for a three year term. Members are also eligible for re-appointment.
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Patron
The Authority’s Patron is Mr Colin Philpott, a former Authority Chairperson who was
awarded an Order of Australia Medal in 2003 for his contribution to rural families.

Members of the Authority

Chairperson
The Authority’s Chairperson is Ms Norma Jeffery, Executive Director, Policy, Planning and 
Accountability, Department of Education and Training.

Members
Members for the full reporting period were Ms Margaret Collins, Mr George Faulds,
Ms Jeanette De Landgrafft, Mr Rodney Lowther, Ms Ursula Richards and Mr Graham Wilks.

Authority members mainly meet in Perth but occasionally in country locations. During this
reporting period six Authority meetings were held in Perth and two in country locations.

An appointment to the Country High School Hostels Authority carries significant
responsibilities and obligations. Authority members have the power to regulate their own
proceedings and as such have established a set of Guidelines and a Code of Conduct to
enable members to carry out their responsibilities and obligations in a positive way. They are
reimbursed for costs incurred in conducting Authority business. Members who are not
public sector employees are paid a sitting fee.

Authority members also assume responsibility for particular colleges, visit them and support
special college events.

Chief Executive Officer

The Authority’s Acting Chief Executive Officer is Ms Sharyn O'Neill, Director General, 
Department of Education and Training.

College Boards of Management

Each residential college has a Board of Management appointed by the Authority to carry out
the general management of the college. Each Board operates under a Constitution that sets
out the powers and functions delegated to it by the Authority. College Boards are made up of
parents, partner school principals, and people from the local community. The College Boards
generally meet twice during each school term. They continually review and direct college
operations to ensure that they meet parents’ expectations and the standards set by the 
Authority and the Government.

CHSHA Office

The Authority operates with a central office headed by a Director who has line management
responsibility for the performance of college managers. Services provided by the office staff
to the residential colleges include:

 communicating standards, policy, general operational procedures, advice and relevant
information;

 establishing appropriate financial accountability;
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 developing personnel management policies and procedures;
 facilitating the maintenance of colleges as safe, functional and attractive facilities;
 receiving, considering and responding to correspondence received from colleges and

other sources;
 providing accountability to Government;
 maintaining operations within legislation and the Government's guidelines; and
 contributing to the improvement of college operations, including parent and student

services and staff development.

Office Staff
Director: Mr Jim Hopkins
Finance Manager: Mr Clayton Shimmon
Manager College Operations: Mr Don Dixon
Project Officer: Ms Lynette Mayo
Human Resources Officer: Ms Gwendy Beach
Administrative Assistant: Ms Mavis Lau

Corporate Services

During 2006-2007 the Department of Education and Training and the Curriculum Council
provided support with records management, information technology and personnel and
payroll.

Mr John Kenney, Manager Financial Policy and Services with the Department of Education
and Training, was the Authority’s Chief Finance Officer for the reporting period.
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INITIATIVES, STANDARDS AND COMPLIANCE

The Authority contributes to the achievement of the Government’s strategic goals and 
associated initiatives. Moreover, as a public sector agency it actively supports and complies
with the standards governing public sector operations and the Government’s annual 
reporting requirements. While some direct links between the strategic planning of the
Government and the Authority have been presented in the previous section, an overview of
other links is presented in the context of each of the Government’s Better Planning: Better
Services 2003 goals.

Goal 1: People and Communities

‘To enrich the quality of life and wellbeing of all people throughout Western 
Australia.’

The Authority’s contribution to the Government’s strategic outcomes relating to this goal 
have been presented in previous parts of this report, namely in the Report on Operations and
in Our Management Focus.

Occupational Qualifications

It is a condition of employment that supervisory staff obtain and maintain specific
occupational qualifications in order to fulfil their on-going employment responsibilities.

Supervisory staff need to be appropriately trained and qualified to provide responsible care
to students. They must gain a Certificate in Residential Care or its equivalent; an aquatic
lifesaving qualification, a senior first aid certificate and an ‘F’ endorsedLR driver’s licence 
before being considered for permanent employment status.

Apart from people employed on short term contracts to fill temporary supervisory staff
vacancies, all residential college supervisory staff are required to gain a Certificate in
Residential Care, or its equivalent. By 30 June 2007, thirty-one of the forty-three residential
college supervisory staff who were not employed on a contract basis had completed the
‘Certificate of Residential Care’ or its equivalent, and nine staff were in the process of gaining 
this qualification. This represents a total of over 93% of permanent or probationary
supervisory staff who either had, or were about to acquire, the qualification.

The table below shows qualification status by employment type.

Employment
Type

RCC
Awarded

RCC Completed/
Awaiting Certification

To be
Completed

Total

Permanent 26 2 2 30
Probation 5 7 1 13
Contract 7 7 1 15

Total 38 16 4 58
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Indigenous Students

The Authority is in the process of establishing a new residential college in Broome which will
enable Indigenous students in the Kimberley region to gain access to education and training
services in Broome. The facility is being designed to provide for both Indigenous and non-
Indigenous students and is scheduled to begin operations on 23 July 2007. There has been
extensive consultation with Indigenous stakeholders and Indigenous representation on the
project reference group and the residential college staff. As part of the planning process a site
survey was conducted to ensure that vegetation of significance to the traditional owners is
preserved. Just prior to the commencement of operations Indigenous people will assist with
the training of the residential college staff so that they will be better equipped to support the
personal development of Indigenous students.

The Authority has continued its liaison with Aboriginal Hostels Limited, a Commonwealth
Government funded agency, in monitoring and planning developments to meet the boarding
needs of Indigenous students throughout the rural and remote regions of Western Australia.
Aboriginal Hostels Limited has been allocated land near Kununurra by the State Government
and is proceeding with the design and construction of a secondary student hostel on this site
which will provide accommodation for 40 secondary school students from remote parts of the
east Kimberley region.

Authority staff continued to participate at the annual conference organised by the National
Association of Rural Student Accommodation and the Indigenous Boarding in Secondary
Schools Association. This participation helped our boarding staff learn from boarding staff
working in boarding facilities providing for Indigenous students throughout Australia.

Disability Access and Inclusion Plan Outcomes

The Authority has continued to promote and implement the strategies outlined in its
Disability Service Plan. All residential colleges are aware of the need to be constantly vigilant
to determine and respond to the needs of students and people with disabilities. All new
college structures adhere to and meet the requirements of Standard AS1438 and the
Commonwealth Disability Discrimination Act.

During the reporting period the Authority supported the needs of one rural student with an
intellectual disability. An extra staff member was employed to provide one-on-one care to
this student.



AANNNNUUAALL RREEPPOORRTT 22000066--22000077

23

Goal 2: The Economy

‘To develop a strong economy that delivers more jobs, more opportunities and 
greater wealth to Western Australians by creating the conditions required for
investment and growth.’

The Authority’s student residential college operations assist with the achievement of the 
Government’s strategic outcomes relating to this goal in the following ways:  

 They help young students living in geographically isolated locations gain an education
and personal life skills which will enable them to achieve economic independence and
contribute to the economic wellbeing of their fellow citizens;

 They employ a diverse workforce that is representative of its customer base;
 Their operations are cost efficient, provide a good return on investment and are

implemented by an efficient workforce; and
 Their purchasing practices achieve the highest possible value for money consistent with

Government purchasing requirements.

Employment Agreements

On 26 June 2007, an agency specific agreement covering the administrative staff working at
the residential colleges was registered by the WA Industrial Relations Commission. The
Agreement updated employees’ working conditions, but did not include a salary increase.

The Government Services (Miscellaneous) General Agreement 2007 was registered with the
WA Industrial Relations Commission on 18 May 2007.  The Agreement covers the Authority’s 
cooks, domestic workers, gardeners and groundskeepers. Employees received a substantial
wage increase owing to broad-banding within the public sector. A wage increase became
effective from 1 January 2007 with further wage increases to take effect from 1 January 2008
and 1 January 2009 respectively.

Effective from 9 March 2007, the Authority’s supervisory staff also received a salary increase 
of 4%, as prescribed in the Country High School Hostels Authority Residential College
Supervisory Staff General Agreement 2006. This Agreement expires on 25 February 2008 and
planning is underway for a replacement agreement.
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Authority Staff by Employment Category (as at 30 June 2007)

No. of Employees
Full-time

Equivalents

Residential Colleges 2006 2007 2006 2007

Administrative Staff 5.72 6.86
Full-time employees 2 2
Part-time employees 5 7
Casuals 1 1

Ancillary Staff 34.4 36.04
Full-time employees 8 9
Part-time employees 45 49
Casuals 4 5

Supervisory Staff 49.5 60.98
Full-time employees 46 56
Part-time employees 8 8
Casuals 5 3

Central Office 4.9 4.9
Full-time employees 4 4
Part-time employees 1 1

Total 129 145 94.5 108.78

Other Information 2006 2007

Full-time employees 60 71
Part-time employees 59 65
Casuals 10 9
Total 129 145

Female employees 89 101
Male employees 40 44
Total 129 145

Employees from culturally &
linguistically diverse backgrounds

2 5

Aboriginal & Torres Strait Islander
employees–Trainees under
registered traineeships

0 0

Employees with Disabilities 3 1
Employees under 25 yrs of age 5 6
Employees over 45 yrs of age 76 96

Note: Additional residential college staff were employed to support a new metropolitan
boarding service, operational planning in conjunction with a new residential college
in Broome and in conjunction with higher student enrolments at Albany and
Geraldton.
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Goal 3: The Environment

‘To ensure that Western Australia has an environment in which resources are managed,
developed and used sustainably, biological diversity is preserved and habitats protected.’

Sustainability

The Authority has addressed the targets and priority areas set in its Sustainability Action Plan
2005-2007. The Authority and its residential colleges are aware of their obligations in relation
to the desired outcomes.  The Authority’s Plan provides details on how the residential 
colleges will adopt and implement the Western Australian Public Sector Sustainability Code of
Practice for Government Agencies.

Water Management

The Authority is monitoring water usage by all colleges and is in the process of analysing the
various usage elements. All colleges are subject to garden water restrictions and several of
the eight residential colleges have redeveloped their grounds as low water use landscapes.
At Broome 'grey' water will be used on the gardens.

Reduction of Greenhouse Emissions

Strategies to reduce greenhouse emissions have been incorporated in the Authority’s 
Sustainability Action Plan. The main focus is on energy savings and the Authority has
received awards for achieving government energy saving targets since these were introduced.
The Authority received an Energy Saving Award in December 2006 for achieving the
Government’s 10% energy smart savings target in 2005-2006.

Waste Management

Strategies to improve waste management (including recycling) have been incorporated in the
Authority’s Sustainability Action Plan. 

Goal 4: The Regions

‘To ensure that Regional Western Australia is strong and vibrant.’

Delivery of Government Services to Regional Customers

 Regional customers have equitable (in comparison to Perth) access to the services
provided
Eight of the nine Country High School Hostels Authority residential colleges in operation
as at 30 June 2006 are located in close proximity to high quality secondary schools in
regional centres. All of our residential colleges specifically cater for remote and isolated
students to ensure that they receive equitable access to educational services, comparable
to the services provided in Perth.

In addition, a new metropolitan residential college ensures that qualifying country
students can gain access to gifted and talented education programs only available at
metropolitan secondary schools.
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 Regional customers are informed of the services available to them
Information on the boarding service provided by Country High School Hostels Authority
residential colleges is actively promoted to rural and remote areas through the central
office and residential college websites, an information booklet, advertisements placed in
various country publications, television and radio advertising, interviews and via
displays at major field days and local agricultural shows.

 Use of regional suppliers
All country residential college purchasing is undertaken in accordance with the Buy Local
Policy that is aimed at maximising opportunities for small, local and regional businesses
in Western Australia through Government buying. They purchase a range of services
from suppliers in rural areas including cleaning/gardening products, small hardware
items, groceries, fresh fruit and vegetables. Residential colleges make use of and pay for
local community facilities and services. The general maintenance of college buildings
and the servicing of college vehicles and equipment are also undertaken by local
businesses.

 Consultation with regional communities about the effects of proposed changes
College Boards of Management are responsible for ensuring the effective and efficient
day-to-day management of residential colleges. Each Board of Management includes
parents of students accommodated at the college and representatives from the local shire,
business and educational communities. The College Boards of Management have a
pivotal role in the initiation, consideration and implementation of any proposed changes
to college operations or college facilities.

 Supported local planning processes
The College Boards of Management, as representatives of the local community, are
consulted and actively involved in decision-making processes affecting college functions.
Each College Board of Management member brings unique and appropriate expertise to
the Board and provides relevant input and support to college planning and operations.

Goal 5: Governance

‘To govern for all Western Australians in an open, effective and efficient manner that 
also ensures a sustainable future.’

Better Service Governance
During 2005-06 the Authority developed an induction package which was provided to all
people newly appointed to college boards of management. Residential college boards of
management consist of people from the local community, their partner schools and parents.
This ensures that residential college policies are developed with broad and relevant input and
that college operations are open to public scrutiny. The college boards of management help
ensure that college operations and services meet appropriate standards and that they are cost
effective in the delivery of their services.

More Cost Efficient Service Delivery
While the Authority’s residential colleges exist to give geographically isolated students access 
to appropriate public schools, the Government has been prepared to enter into public-private
ventures in relation to regional boarding services under appropriate public-private cost
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sharing arrangements. In 2005-06 the Catholic Education Office contributed significant
capital funds towards the construction of the Broome Residential College in return for access
to some of the accommodation for students attending St Mary’s College.  This partnership has 
benefited both sectors and helped create a more viable and cost effective boarding service in
this regional centre than otherwise would have been possible. The Catholic Education Office
has also agreed to make a capital contribution to the redevelopment of the Albany Residential
College in return for access to some places for students attending St Joseph’s.  The Authority
has also held public-private venture discussions with other private sector education
providers.

Service Integration Opportunities
Under current arrangements the Country High School Hostels Authority, the Department for
Community Development and the Department of Education and Training provide boarding
services to secondary school students. The Department of Education and Training also
provides student accommodation in some regional centres for Tertiary and Further Education
students. It has yet to be determined whether there is a benefit to be gained from some
integration of these State-run student residential services.

Compliance with Public Sector Standards and Ethical Codes

Country High School Hostels Authority policies and practices comply with the Public Sector
Standards in Human Resource Management, the WA Public Sector Code of Ethics and the
Authority’s Code of Conduct.  Policies and guidelines are contained in the Human Resource 
Manual and are accessible to all staff.

All colleges are informed of the Public Sector Management (Breaches of Public Sector Standards)
Regulations 2005 provisions, should an employee seek redress if they believe a decision has
breached a Human Resource Management Standard.

As part of the Authority’s Induction Program, new employees receive information on the
Public Sector Standards in Human Resource Management, the Public Sector (Breaches of
Public Sector Standards) Regulations 2005, the WA Public Sector Code of Ethics and the
Authority’s Code of Conduct.

Ethical and conduct issues form an ongoing agenda item at residential college managers’ 
meetings and are reviewed regularly in this forum. Any policy issues or procedural
amendments that arise are communicated to staff as they occur. Workshops for
administrative staff held in May 2007 also included training and awareness raising regarding
these matters.

College managers were surveyed and verified that all staff had been reminded of their
obligations and responsibilities to ensure that their behaviours, attitudes and actions are in
accordance with the WA Public Sector Code of Ethics and the Authority’s Code of Conduct.  
Internal and external audits were also conducted to check the appropriate use of public
resources in financial management, purchasing goods and engaging contractors.

In the 2006-2007 reporting period there were no complaints alleging non-compliance with the
Western AustralianPublic Sector Code of Ethics or the Authority’s Code of Conduct, nor any 
breach claims made against the Public Sector Standards in Human Resource Management
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lodged under the Public Sector Management (Breaches of Public Sector Standards)
Regulations 2005.

Workers’ Compensation

RiskCover, the Authority’s insurer, accepted liability for three new claims during the 2006-
2007 financial year. Two claims were minor and have been closed, while the third is ongoing.
Liability has been accepted for medical payments in this case and the claimant is receiving
weekly payments. The claimant will be undergoing surgery to remedy the injury.

There is one ongoing claim from previous years for which liability for medical expenses
continues. Settlement of the claim had been offered, but not accepted by the end of the
reporting period.

Leave Liability

Leave liability is effectively managed by the Authority and was at an acceptable level in 2006-
2007. Under their terms of employment, all residential college staff take their annual leave at
specified times each year. In addition, all colleges make financial provision for long service
leave.

Equal Employment Opportunity Outcomes

Authority and residential college operations and policies promote gender equity, non-
discrimination and flexible work options. Information about Authority policy in relation to
equal employment opportunity and the unacceptability of any form of harassment,
unwelcome behaviour, or discrimination is included in employee inductions and is a
component of ongoing training sessions. There is an on-going commitment to promote
diversity group equity in appointments to the Authority, Authority Committees and
Residential College Boards of Management.

The table below shows the Authority’s performance in relation to objectives set in the 
previous reporting period. Much of the data collected is dependent on voluntary self-
reporting via the Authority’s Equity and Diversity questionnaires, which are issued to all new 
employees, and re-issued to employees who have not previously completed one, towards the
end of the reporting period. The return rate for the period was 72.5%, which was higher than
the return rate of 69.2% from the previous period. Employees who respond have the choice
of whether or not to divulge all information requested.

The Authority has made progress in its desire to improve workforce diversity as the number
of employees from cultural and linguistically diverse and Indigenous backgrounds has
increased (by 2.3% and 1.6% respectively) since the previous reporting period. The
representation in these groups exceeded targets for the year. Similarly, the representation of
persons aged below 25 also exceeded the set target.

While there has been a small increase in the number of women in management, the Authority
fell short of its target of 33%. Similarly, the employment of persons with disabilities requiring
workplace, management, or duty modification fell slightly short of target.
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Job-share arrangements continued at two colleges and a number of staff were voluntarily
seconded to two new colleges in City Beach and Broome.

In the coming financial year, the Authority will review its Equity and Diversity Plan to
include specific strategies for increasing the representation of women in management and the
number of employees with disabilities, while continuing to grow the representation of other
diversity groups and provide flexible working arrangements.

Publications and Research

The Authority's website came on line at the beginning of 2006, and residential colleges now
have their own website operational or are working towards this goal. The website,
www.det.wa.edu.au/boarding, provides public access to many of the Authority's publications
including access to enrolment forms, fee and allowance information, and links to residential
colleges and related organisations.

The Authority has a number of publications that are available for viewing on application to
the Authority. These include an information booklet for parents; a set of standards for the
care and supervision of students boarding at the Authority’s residential colleges; guidelines
for the staff who supervise and care for the students in residence; policy and procedure
manuals for the colleges covering college administration, human resources, finance, and
records management; risk management, information technology, and disability services
plans, the Code of Conduct and the Authority’s annual reports.  Also stored and available for 
perusal are reviews/reports on the Authority’s business and its residential colleges over the 
past ten years.

A regular newsletter supports the communication of Authority business decisions to all
colleges as well as providing updates on current issues and trends.

Freedom of Information

The Authority supports the principle that Freedom of Information applications should be the
process of last resort reserved to deal with the most sensitive information. The Authority
aims as far as possible to provide access to documents or information outside the Freedom of
Information process.

Equity Index

Women Management
Tiers 2 & 3 33
People from Culturally
Diverse Backgrounds

-

Indigenous Australians -

People with Disabilities -

Youth N/A

A meaningful Equity Index cannot be calculated for a diversity group with less than 10 individuals.

4.0
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1.5

3.8

2007 Objective set by your
agency (%)

% Actual Representation
% Above or below

objective
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0.8

-0.7



CCOOUUNNTTRRYY HHIIGGHH SSCCHHOOOOLL HHOOSSTTEELLSS AAUUTTHHOORRIITTYY

30

Requests made under the provisions of the Act can be addressed directly to the Freedom of
Information Officer at the Authority’s address.  The Freedom of Information Officer can help 
people make a request under the Freedom of Information Act where necessary and can be
contacted on (08) 9264 5434. Some costs are involved where information is not available free
of charge.

For the year ended 30 June 2007 there were no formal requests for information under the Act.

Recordkeeping Plans

In accordance with Section 19 of the State Records Act 2000, the Authority submitted a
Recordkeeping Plan to the State Records Office of Western Australia. The State Records
Commission approved the Plan on 6 November 2003.

The Country High School Hostels is co-located with the Department of Education and
Training and has supported the development of a records management model which can
embrace the education and training portfolio.

An audit on the Authority’scentral office records management was carried out on 7 June 2006
by Quantum Consulting Australia, a chartered accounting firm commissioned by the
Department of Education and Training. The Authority was one of the 50 sites within the
education and training portfolio to be selected for an audit, the first to be scheduled since the
State Records Act 2000 was introduced.

The objectives of the audit were to determine whether theAuthority’s central office complied
with the State Records Commission Standard 2 Record Keeping Plans and the Authority’s policies 
relating to government record keeping. This included procedures and guidelines set out in
the Authority’s Records Management Manual.  Selected samples of record types were 
checked for detailed testing.

The Authority’scentral office records management was found to be compliant and given an
overall rating of 4 out of 5, which indicated that some aspects of central office records
management could be enhanced. This compliance rating took into consideration principles of
control such as Proper and Adequate Records, Policies and Procedures, Preservation,
Retention and Disposal, Language Control, and Compliance.

Records management training continues to be provided to new staff and College Board
members as part of each residential college’s orientation program.  New College Board
members are inducted in their record keeping responsibilities at or prior to their attendance
at their first board meeting. New college staff are inducted into the records management
process within three working days of their commencement, and all staff have a copy of the
Authority’s record keeping policy and guidelines.
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Advertising and Sponsorship

In accordance with Section 175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907 the following information is
presented. The total expenditure on advertising for 2006-2007 was $67,953. Of this amount
$14,949 was used by the CHSHA office for scholarship and boarding service advertising, and
the production of an information booklet for parents. $53,004 was spent by the eight
residential colleges on the production and distribution of information booklets, print, radio
and television promotions and on regional field day displays and local agricultural show
displays.

Risk Management

The Authority and all residential colleges reviewed their operational activities and reassessed
their risk list and risk classifications. Where necessary, the Authority and residential colleges
updated their risk management action plans. In addition, the Authority was advised that the
Department of Education and Training had been engaged to develop a business continuity
plan for education and training which encompassed the Authority’s operations. 

Government Policy Requirements

Corruption Prevention

The Authority has in place policies and procedures to remove risks associated with
corruption and misconduct and disclosure of confidential information. Staff inductions have
been revised to ensure new staff are aware of their responsibilities to safeguard confidential
information.

Sustainability
See report under planning goal 3–The Environment (page 25).

Substantive Equality

While the Authority is not one of the departments required to report on implementation of
the Government’s policy framework for Substantive Equality, its operations do value the 
creation of an inclusive and harmonious society where all people are treated equitably and
fairly and are able to meet their full potential with dignity and respect.

All of the Authority’s residential colleges are open to all Western Australian students 
regardless of their ethnic origin or race. The Authority actively supports the employment of
people from diverse ethnic or racial backgrounds as part of its belief in treating all human life
with equal reverence and respect. All of our people actively aspire to uphold the values
which they have developed as the value framework for themselves and for the students in
residence, namely: mutual respect; the achievement of self-fulfilment and success; the
achievement of high standards; fairness; and co-operation.
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Statement of Compliance

In the administration of the Authority I have complied with Public Sector Standards in
Human Resource Management and the Western Australian Public Sector Code of Ethics and
our Code of Conduct. I have put in place procedures designed to ensure such compliance
and conducted appropriate internal checks to satisfy myself that the statement made above is
correct. There have been no applications made for a Breach of Standards review in the
reporting period.

Sharyn O'Neill
A/CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

7 September 2007
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Certification of Performance Indicators

We certify that the performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant and
appropriate for assisting users to assess the Country High School Hostels Authority's
performance, and present fairly the performance of the Country High School Hostels
Authority for the financial year ended 30 June 2007.

Certification of Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements of the Country High School Hostels Authority have
been prepared in compliance with the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 from
proper accounts and records to present fairly the financial transactions for the year ended 30
June 2007 and the financial position as at 30 June 2007. At the date of signing, we are not
aware of any circumstances that would render the particulars included in the financial
statements misleading or inaccurate.

Norma Jeffery Rod Lowther
CHAIRPERSON MEMBER

Frank Wee
CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER

7 September 2007



CCOOUUNNTTRRYY HHIIGGHH SSCCHHOOOOLL HHOOSSTTEELLSS AAUUTTHHOORRIITTYY

34



AANNNNUUAALL RREEPPOORRTT 22000066--22000077

35



CCOOUUNNTTRRYY HHIIGGHH SSCCHHOOOOLL HHOOSSTTEELLSS AAUUTTHHOORRIITTYY

36

INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

Note 2006/07 2005/06
$'000 $'000

COST OF SERVICES
Expenses

Employee benefits expense 4 4,932 4,305
Depreciation expense 5 899 847
Finance costs 6 736 750
Supplies and services 7 513 517
Food supplies 921 883
Domestic 718 729
Maintenance 558 474
Amenities 202 167
Motor vehicle 98 86
Canteen 56 121
Capital user charge 8 1,836 1,363
Other expenses 53 67

Total Cost of Services 11,522 10,309

Income
Revenue

Boarding fees 9 5,604 5,318
Other revenue 10 2,214 1,117

Total Revenue 7,818 6,435
Gains

Gain on disposal of non-current assets 11 13 6
Total Gains 13 6

Total Income other than Income from State
Government

7,831 6,441

NET COST OF SERVICES 3,691 3,868

INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT 12
Service appropriation 6,607 5,203
Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer (1) 8
Resources received free of charge 51 13
Total Income from State Government 6,657 5,224

SURPLUS FOR THE PERIOD 2,966 1,356

The Income Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30 JUNE 2007

2006/07 2005/06Note
$'000 $'000

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 23 6,759 3,914
Receivables 13 575 402
Amounts receivable for services 14 400 400

Total Current Assets 7,734 4,716

Non-Current Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 15 42 41
Amounts receivable for services 14 3,944 3,286
Property, plant, and equipment 16 36,255 27,982

Total Non-Current Assets 40,241 31,309

TOTAL ASSETS 47,975 36,025

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Payables 17 170 171
Borrowings 18 670 675
Provisions 19 443 421
Income received in advance 20 373 330
Other current liabilities 21 214 256

Total Current Liabilities 1,870 1,853

Non-Current Liabilities
Payables 17 42 41
Borrowings 18 10,799 11,313
Provisions 19 198 171

Total Non-Current Liabilities 11,039 11,525

TOTAL LIABILITIES 12,909 13,378

NET ASSETS 35,066 22,647

EQUITY 22
Contributed equity 10,420 3,850
Reserves 12,269 9,386
Accumulated surplus 12,377 9,411

TOTAL EQUITY 35,066 22,647

The Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

Note 2006/07 2005/06
$'000 $'000

Balance of equity at the start of the period 22,647 17,966

CONTRIBUTED EQUITY 22
Balance at the start of the period 3,850 2,171
Capital Contribution 6,570 2,029
Distribution to owner (350)
Balance at end of period 10,420 3,850

RESERVES 22
Asset Revaluation Reserve
Balance at the start of the period 9,386 7,740
Gains / (losses) from asset revaluation 2,883 1,646

Balance at end of period 12,269 9,386

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS 22
Balance at the start of the period 9,411 8,055
Surplus / (deficit) for the period 2,966 1,356

Balance at end of period 12,377 9,411

Balance of equity at end of period 35,066 22,647

Total income and (expense) for the period (a) 5,849 3,002

(a) The aggregate net amount attributable to each category of equity is :
2007 - $5,849,000: surplus $2,966,000 plus gains from asset revaluation of $2,883,000.
2006 - $3,002,000: surplus $1,356,000 plus gains from asset revaluation of $1,646,000

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

Note 2006/07 2005/06
$'000 $'000

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriation 5,549 4,360
Capital appropriation 6,570 2,029
Holding account draw downs 400 400

Net cash provided by State Government 12,519 6,789

Utilised as follows:

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Employee benefits (4,884) (4,336)
Supplies and services (3,097) (3,040)
Capital user charge (1,836) (1,363)
Finance costs (733) (758)
GST payments on purchases (671) (259)

Receipts
Boarding fees 5,622 5,116
Interest received 67 57
GST receipts on sales 506 218
Other receipts 498 509

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 23 (4,528) (3,856)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets 26 122
Purchase of non-current physical assets (4,652) (508)
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities (4,626) (386)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds of borrowings - -
Repayment of borrowings (519) (506)
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities (519) (506)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,846 2,041

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 3,955 1,914

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END
OF THE PERIOD 23 6,801 3,955

The Cash Flow Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

1. Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards

The Authority’s financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2007 have been
prepared in accordance with Australian equivalents to International Financial
Reporting Standards (AIFRS), which comprise a Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements (the Framework) and Australian Accounting
Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations). In preparing these
financial statements the Authority has adopted, where relevant to its operations, new
and revised Standards and Interpretations from their operative dates as issued by the
AASB and formerly the Urgent Issues Group (UIG)

Early adoption of standards

The Authority cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard or Australian
Accounting Interpretation unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 ‘Application of 
Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements’. No Standards and 
Interpretations that have been issued or amended but are not yet effective have been
early adopted by the Authority for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2007.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies

a) General Statement

The financial statements constitute a general purpose financial report which has been
prepared in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework,
Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the
Australian Accounting Standards Board as applied by the Treasurer’s Instructions.  
Several of these are modified by the Treasurer's Instructions to vary application,
disclosure, format and wording.

The Financial Management Act and the Treasurer’s Instructions are legislative provisions 
governing the preparation of financial statements and take precedence over the
Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other
authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board.

Where modification is required and has a material or significant financial effect upon the
reported results, details of that modification and the resulting financial effect are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

b) Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the
historical cost convention, modified by the revaluation of land and buildings which have
been measured at fair value.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been
consistently applied throughout all periods presented unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars rounded to the nearest
thousand dollars ($'000).

After assessing possible sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, the
Authority considers that there is no significant risk of any matter causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

c) Reporting Entity

The reporting entity comprises the Authority. There are no related bodies.
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d) Contributed Equity

UIG Interpretation1038 ‘Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector
Entities’ requires transfers in the nature of equity contributions to be designated by the 
Government (the owner) as contributions by owners (at the time of, or prior to transfer)
before such transfers can be recognised as equity contributions. Capital contributions
(appropriations) have been designated as contributions by owners by TI 955
'Contributions by Owners made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities' and have been
credited directly to Contributed Equity.

e) Income
Revenue
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
recognised for the major business activities as follows:

Boarding Fees, Amenities Fees and Canteen Revenue
Revenue is recognised on delivery of the service to the client or by reference to the stage
of completion of the transaction.

Interest
Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues.

Service Appropriations
Service appropriations are recognised as revenues at nominal value in the period in
which the Authority gains control of the appropriated funds. The Authority gains control
of appropriated funds at the time those funds are deposited to the bank account or
credited to the holding account held at Treasury. (See note 12)

Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions are recognised at fair
value when the Authority obtains control over the assets comprising the contributions,
usually when cash is received.

Where contributions recognised as revenues during the reporting period were obtained
on the condition that they be expended in a particular manner or used over a particular
period, and those conditions were undischarged as at the reporting date, the nature of,
and amounts pertaining to those undischarged conditions, are disclosed in the notes.

Gains
Gains may be realised or unrealised and are usually recognised on a net basis. These
include gains arising on the disposal of non-current assets and some revaluations of non-
current assets.

f) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs for qualifying assets are capitalised net of any investment income earned
on the unexpended portion of the borrowings. Other borrowing costs are expensed when
incurred.
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g) Property, Plant and Equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment costing over $1,000 are recognised as assets and
the cost of utilising assets is expensed (depreciated) over their useful lives. Items of
property, plant and equipment costing less than $1,000 are immediately expensed direct
to the Income Statement (other than where they form part of a group of similar items
which are significant in total).

Initial recognition and measurement
All items of property, plant, and equipment are initially recognised at cost.

For items of property, plant, and equipment acquired at no cost or for nominal
consideration, the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition.

Subsequent measurement
After recognition as an asset, the revaluation model is used for the measurement of land
and buildings and the cost model for all other property, plant and equipment. Land and
buildings are carried at fair value less accumulated depreciation on buildings and
accumulated impairment losses. All other items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Where market evidence is available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on
the basis of current market buying values determined by reference to recent market
transactions. When buildings are revalued by reference to recent market transactions, the
accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset
and the net amount restated to the revalued amount.

Where market evidence is not available, the fair value of land and buildings is
determined on the basis of existing use. This normally applies where buildings are
specialised or where land use is restricted. Fair value for existing use assets is
determined by reference to the cost of replacing the remaining future economic benefits
embodied in the asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement cost. The revaluation of land and
buildings is an independent valuation provided on an annual basis by the Department of
Land Information (Valuation Services).

The most significant assumptions in estimating fair value are made in assessing whether
to apply the existing use basis to assets. Professional judgment by the valuer is required
where the evidence does not provide a clear distinction between market type assets and
existing use assets.

Refer to note 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment' for further information on revaluations.
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Depreciation
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over
their estimated useful lives in a manner that reflects the consumption of their future
economic benefits. Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated
using the straight line method, using rates which are reviewed annually.

Estimated useful lives for each class of depreciable asset are :

Buildings 40 years (rate of 2.5% per annum)
Office equipment and furniture 3 - 5 years (rate of 20% - 33% per annum)
Buses & mobile equipment 5 -10 years (rate of 10% - 20% per annum)

h) Impairment of Assets

Property, plant, and equipment are tested for any indication of impairment at each
reporting date. Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is
estimated. Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is
written down to the recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised. As the
Authority is a not-for-profit entity, unless an asset has been identified as a surplus asset,
the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and 
depreciated replacement cost.

The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s 
depreciation is materially understated or where the replacement cost is falling. Each
relevant class of assets is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated
depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of consumption or expiration of an asset’s 
future economic benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from falling replacement
costs.

For assets identified as surplus assets, the recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from
the asset.

For surplus assets carried at fair value, there is no risk of material impairment. Surplus
assets at cost are tested for indications of impairments at each reporting date.

i) Leases

The Authority holds an operating lease for three motor vehicles. Lease payments are
expensed on a straight line basis over the lease term as this represents the pattern of
benefits derived from the vehicle.
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j) Financial Instruments

The Authority has two categories of financial instrument:
* Loans and receivables (includes cash and term deposits); and
* Non-trading financial liabilities.

Initial recognition and measurement is at fair value. Usually the transaction cost or face
value is equivalent to fair value and subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost or the face
value because there is no interest rate applicable and subsequent measurement is not
required as the effect of discounting is not material.

k) Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalent (and restricted
cash and cash equivalent) assets comprise cash on hand and short-term deposits with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount
of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank
overdrafts.

l) Accrued Salaries

Accrued salaries (refer note 21 'Other Current Liabilities') represent the amount due to
staff but unpaid at the end of the financial year, as the end of the last pay period for that
financial year does not normally coincide with the end of the financial year. Accrued
salaries are settled within a few days of the financial year end. The Authority considers
the carrying amount of accrued salaries to be equivalent to its net fair value.

m) Amounts Receivable for Services (Holding Account)

The Authority receives funding on an accrual basis that recognises the full annual cash
and non-cash cost of services. The appropriations are paid partly in cash and partly as an
asset (Holding Account Receivable) that is accessible on the emergence of the cash
funding requirement to cover items such as leave entitlements and asset replacement.

See also note 12 'Income from State Government' and note 14 'Amounts Receivable for
Services'.
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n) Receivables

Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less any provision for
uncollectable amounts (i.e. impairment). The collectability of receivables is reviewed on
an ongoing basis and any receivables identified as uncollectable are written-off. The
allowance for uncollectable amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there is objective
evidence that the Authority will not be able to collect the debts. The carrying amount is
equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30 days. See note 13
‘Receivables’.

o) Payables

Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the Authority becomes obliged to
make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets or services. The carrying
amount is equivalent to fair value, as accounts are generally settled within 30 days. See
note 17 ‘Payables’.

p) Borrowings

All loans are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the net proceeds received.
Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
See note 29 'Financial Instruments' and note 18 'Borrowings'.

q) Provisions

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing and amount and are recognised where there
is a present legal, equitable or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and when
the outflow of economic benefits is probable and can be measured reliably. Provisions
are reviewed at each balance sheet date. See note 19 'Provisions'.

(i) Provisions - Employee Benefits
Annual Leave and Long Service Leave
The liability for annual and long service leave expected to be settled within 12
months after the end of the balance sheet date is recognised and measured at the
undiscounted amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Annual
and long service leave expected to be settled more than 12 months after the end of
the balance sheet date is measured at the present value of amounts expected to be
paid when the liabilities are settled. Leave liabilities are in respect of services
provided by employees up to the balance sheet date.

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future
wage and salary levels including non-salary components such as employer
superannuation contributions. In addition, the long service leave liability also
considers the experience of employee departures and periods of service.
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The expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the balance
sheet date on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as
closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

All annual leave and unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as
current liabilities as the Authority does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Superannuation

The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) administers the
following superannuation schemes.

Employees may contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme
now closed to new members, or the Gold State Superannuation (GSS) Scheme, a
defined benefit lump sum scheme now also closed to new members.

The Authority has no liabilities under the Pension or the GSS Schemes. The
liabilities for the unfunded Pension Scheme and the unfunded GSS Scheme transfer
benefits due to members who transferred from the Pension Scheme, are assumed by
the Treasurer. All other GSS Scheme obligations are funded by concurrent
contributions made by the Authority to the GESB. The concurrently funded part of
the GSS Scheme is a defined contribution scheme as these contributions extinguish
all liabilities in respect of the concurrently funded GSS Scheme obligations.

Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who are not members
of either the Pension or the GSS Schemes become non-contributory members of the
West State Superannuation (WSS) Scheme, an accumulation scheme. Employees
commencing employment on or after 16 April 2007 became members of the GESB
Super (GESBS) Scheme. The Authority makes concurrent contributions to GESB on
behalf of employees in compliance with the Commonwealth Government's
Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992. These contributions
extinguish all liabilities in respect of the WSS and GESBS Schemes.

The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the Pension and GSS Schemes,
and is recouped by the Treasurer for the employer's share.

See also note 2(r) 'Superannuation expense' below.

(ii) Provisions - Other
Employment On-costs
Employment on-costs, including worker's compensation insurance, are not
employee benefits and are recognised as separate liabilities and expenses when the
employment to which they relate has occurred. Employment on-costs are included
as part of 'Other expenses' and are not included as part of the Authority's 'Employee
benefits expense'. The related liability is included in 'Employment on-costs
provision'. (See 'Other expenses' and note 19 'Provisions').
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r) Superannuation Expense

The following elements are included in calculating the superannuation expense in the
Income Statement:

(a) Defined benefit plans - Change in the unfunded employer's liability (i.e. current
service cost and actuarial gains and losses) assumed by the Treasurer in respect of
current employees who are members of the Pension Scheme and current employees
who accrued a benefit on transfer from that Scheme to the Gold State
Superannuation Scheme (GSS); and

(b) Defined contribution plans - Employer contributions paid to the GSS, the West
State Superannuation Scheme (WSS), and the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS)

Defined benefit plans - in order to reflect the true cost of services, the movements
(i.e. current service cost and actuarial gains and losses) in the liabilities in respect of
the Pension Scheme and the GSS transfer benefits are recognised as expenses. As
these liabilities are assumed by the Treasurer, a revenue titled 'Liabilities assumed
by the Treasurer' equivalent to the expense is recognised under Income from State
Government in the Income Statement (see note 12 'Income from State Government').

The superannuation expense does not include payment of pensions to retirees, as
this does not constitute part of the cost of services provided in the current year.

The GSS Scheme is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and
whole of government reporting. However, apart from the transfer benefit, it is a
defined contribution plan for agency purposes because the concurrent contributions
(defined contributions) made by the agency to GESB extinguishes the agency’s 
obligations to the related superannuation liability.

s) Resources Received Free of Charge or for Nominal Value

Resources received free of charge or for nominal value that can be reliably measured are
recognised as revenues and as assets or expenses as appropriate at fair value.

t) Comparative Figures

Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the
figures presented in the current financial year.
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3. Disclosure of Changes in Accounting Policy and Estimates

Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard
The Authority has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards and
Australian Accounting Interpretations effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2006.

1 AASB 2005-9 'Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASB 4, AASB
1023, AASB 139 & AASB 132]' (Financial guarantee contracts). The amendment
deals with the treatment of financial guarantee contracts, credit insurance contracts,
letters of credit or credit derivative default contracts as either an "insurance
contract" under AASB 4 'Insurance Contracts' or as a "financial guarantee contract"
under AASB 139 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement'. The
Authority does not currently undertake these types of transactions, resulting in no
financial impact in applying the Standard.

2 UIG Interpretation 4 'Determining whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease' as
issued in June 2005. This Interpretation deals with arrangements that comprise a
transaction or a series of linked transactions that may not involve a legal form of a
lease but by their nature are deemed to be leases for the purposes of applying
AASB 117 'Leases'. At balance sheet date, the Authority has not entered into any
arrangements as specified in the Interpretation, resulting in no impact in applying
the Interpretation.

3 UIG Interpretation 9 'Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives'. This Interpretation
requires an embedded derivative that has been combined with a non-derivative in
certain circumstances. At balance sheet date, the Authority has not entered into any
contracts as specified in the Interpretation, resulting in no impact in applying the
Interpretation.

The following Australian Accounting Standards and interpretations are not applicable to
the Authority as they have no impact or do not apply to not-for-profit entities:

AASB Standards
and Interpretations
2005-1 'Amendments to Australian Accounting Standard' (AASB 139 -

Cash flow hedge accounting of forecast intragroup translations)
2005-5 'Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASB 1 &

AASB 139]'
2006-1 'Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASB 121]'
2006-3 'Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASB 1045]'
2006-4 'Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASB 134]'
2007-2 'Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from

AASB Interpretation 12 [AASB 1, AASB 117, AASB 118, AASB 120,
AASB 121, AASB 127, AASB 131 & AASB 139]' - paragraph 9

UIG 5 'Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and
Environmental Rehabilitation Funds'

UIG 6 'Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market - Waste
Electrical and Electronic Equipment'
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UIG 7 'Applying the Restatement Approach under AASB 129 Financial
Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies'

UIG 8 'Scope of AASB 2'

Future Impact of Australian Accounting Standards Not Yet Operative

The Authority cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard or Australian
Accounting Interpretation unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 'Application of
Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements'. Consequently, the
Authority has not applied the following Australian Accounting Standards and Australian
Accounting Interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective. These will be
applied from their application date :

1 AASB 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' (including consequential amendments
in AASB 2005-10 'Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASB 132,
AASB 101, AASB 114, AASB 117, AASB 133, AASB 139, AASB 1, AASB 4, AASB
1023 & AASB 1038]'). This standard requires new disclosures in relation to financial
instruments. The Standard is considered to result in increased disclosures, both
quantitative and qualitative of the Authority’s exposure to risks, enhanced 
disclosure regarding components of the Authority’s financial position and 
performance, and possible changes to the way of presenting certain items in the
financial statements. The Authority does not expect any financial impact when the
Standard is first applied. The Standard is required to be applied to annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007.

2

3

4

AASB 2005-10 'Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASB 132, AASB
101,114, 117 133, 139 1023, 1038 & AASB 1 & 4]'. (Financial guarantee contracts). The
amendments are as a result of the issue of AASB 7 ‘Financial Instruments: 
Disclosures’, which amends the financial instrument disclosure requirements in
these standards. The Authority does not expect any financial impact when the
Standard is first applied. The Standard is required to be applied to annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007.

AASB 101 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’. This Standard was revised and 
issued in October 2006 so that AASB 101 has the same requirements as IAS 1
‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ (as issued by the IASB in respect of for profit
entities. The Authority is a not-for-profit entity and consequently does not expect
any financial impact when the Standard is first applied. The Standard is required to
be applied to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007.

AASB 2007-4 'Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from ED
151 and Other Amendments (AASB 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,102,107,108,110,112,114,116,117,
118,119,120,121,127,128,129,130,131,132,133,134,136,137,138,139,141,1023 and 1038)'.
This Standard introduces policy options and modifies disclosures. These
amendments arise as a result of the AASB decision that, in principle, all options that
currently exist under IFRSs should be included in the Australian equivalents to
IFRSs and additional Australian disclosures should be eliminated, other than those
now considered particularly relevant in the Australian reporting environment. The
Department of Treasury and Finance has indicated that it will mandate to remove
the policy options as a consequence of application of the Standard. The Standard is
required to be applied to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2007.
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5

6

7

8

AASB 2007-5 ‘Amendment to Australian Accounting Standard –Inventories Held
for Distribution by Not for Profit Entities (AASB 102)’. This amendment changes 
AASB 102 ‘Inventories’ so that inventories held for distribution by not for profit 
entities are measured at cost, adjusted when applicable for any loss of service
potential. The Authority does not have any inventories held for distribution so does
not expect any financial impact when the Standard is first applied. The Standard is
required to be applied to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2007.

AASB Interpretation 4 'Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease
(revised)’. This Interpretation  was revised and issued in February 2007 to specify 
that if a public to private service concession arrangement meets the scope
requirements of AASB Interpretation 12 ‘Service Concession Arrangements’ as 
issued in February 2007, it would not be within the scope of Interpretation. At
balance sheet date, the Authority has not entered into any arrangements as specified
in the Interpretation or within the scope of Interpretation 12, resulting in no impact
when the Interpretation is first applied. The Interpretation is required to be applied
to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008.

AASB Interpretation 12 ‘ Service Concession Arrangements’. This interpretation was
issued in February 2007 and gives guidance on the accounting by operators (usually
a private sector entity) for public to private service concession arrangements. It does
not address the accounting by grantors (usually a public sector entity). It is
currently unclear as to the application of the Interpretation to the Authority if and
when public to private service concession arrangements are entered into in the
future. At balance sheet date, the Authority has not entered into any public to
private service concession arrangements resulting in no impact when the
Interpretation is first applied. The Interpretation is required to be applied to annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008.

AASB Interpretation 129 ‘Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures (revised)’.
This Interpretation was revised in February 2007 to be consistent with the
requirements in AASB Interpretation 12 ‘Service Concession Arrangements’ as 
issued in February 2007. Specific Disclosures about service concession arrangements
entered into are required in the notes accompany the financial statements, whether
as a grantor or an operator. The Interpretation is required to be applied to annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008.
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The following Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations are not applicable to
the Authority as they will have no impact or do not apply to not-for-profit entities :
AASB8 ‘Operating Segments’
AASB 1049 ‘Financial Reporting of General Government Sectors by

Governments’
AASB 2007-1 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from 

AASB Interpretation 11 (AASB 2 )’
AASB 2007-2 'Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from

AASB Interpretation 12 (AASB 1,117,118,120,121,127,131 & 139)’ –
paragraphs 1-8

AASB 2007-3 'Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from
AASB 8 (AASB 5,6,102,107,119,127,134,136,1023 & 1038)’

Interpretation 10 ‘Interim Financial Reporting & Impairment’
Interpretation 11 ‘AASB 2 –Group and Treasury Share Transaction’.
AASB 123 'Borrowing Costs'
AASB 2007-6 'Amendment standard issued as a consequence of AASB123'
AASB 2007-7 'Amending standard issued as a consequence of AASB 2007-4'
Interpretation 13 'Customer Loyalty Programmes'
Interpretation 14 'IAS 19 - The Asset Ceiling'
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2006/07 2005/06
$'000 $'000

4. Employee Benefits Expense
Wages and salaries (1) 4,259 3,839
Superannuation - defined contribution plans (2) 379 351
Superannuation - defined benefit plans (3) (1) 8
Long service leave (4) 16 (140)
Annual leave (4) 33 7
Other related expenses 246 240

4,932 4,305

(1) Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the employee plus the fringe benefits
tax component.

(2) Defined contribution plans include West State, GESB Super and Gold State
(contributions paid).

(3) An equivalent notional income is also recognised (see Note 12 Income from State
Government).

(4) Includes a superannuation contribution component.

Employment on-costs such as workers' compensation insurance are included in ' Other
Expenses'. The employment on-costs liability is included at Note 19' Provisions'

5. Depreciation Expense
Office equipment 40 41
Buildings 719 669
Plant, equipment and furniture 107 83
Buses and mobile equipment 33 54

899 847

6. Finance Costs
Interest paid 736 750

736 750

7. Supplies and Services
Office rental 8 6
Insurance 64 64
Authority members' expenses 11 10
Marketing 79 79
Telephone 94 82
Operating lease 18 8
Other administration expenses 239 268

513 517
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2006/07 2005/06
$'000 $'000

8. Capital User Charge
1,836 1,363
1,836 1,363

The charge was a levy applied by Government for the use of its capital. In 2006 -07, the
final year in which the charge was levied, a single payment was made equal to the
appropriation for 2006-07 less any adjustment relating to 2005-06.

9. Boarding Fees
5,604 5,318
5,604 5,318

The Boarding Fee of $8,335 (includes $112 GST) per student for the 2007 school year is
collected in three instalments during the year. The fee is determined by the
Authority’s Board and approved by the Minister for Education and Training each year.

10. Other Revenue
Amenities 297 246
Canteen 35 124
Interest 67 57
Other 166 139
Catholic Education Office 1,649 551

2,214 1,117

Refer to Note 28 for explanation of significant variance
between 2007 and 2006 balance.

11. Net Gain / (Loss) on Disposal of Non-Current Assets

Cost of Disposal of Non-Current Assets
Plant, equipment and vehicles 13 116

Proceeds from Disposal of Non-Current Assets
Plant, equipment and vehicles 26 122

Net gain 13 6

See also note 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment'.
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2006/07 2005/06
$'000 $'000

12. Income from State Government
Appropriation received during the year:
Service appropriation (a) 6,607 5,203

6,607 5,203
The following liabilities have been assumed by the
Treasurer during the financial year:

Superannuation (b) (1) 8
(1) 8

Resources received free of charge (d)
Determined on the basis of the following estimates
provided by agencies:

Department of Education and Training
- finance and human resource services 51 13

51 13

6,657 5,224

(a) Service appropriations are accrual amounts reflecting the net cost of services
delivered. The appropriation revenue comprises a cash component and a receivable
(asset). The receivable (holding account) comprises the depreciation expense for the
year and any agreed increase in leave liability during the year.

(b) The assumption of the superannuation liability by the Treasurer is a notional
income to match the notional superannuation expense reported in respect of current
employees who are members of the Pension Scheme and current employees who have
a transfer benefit entitlement under the Gold State Superannuation Scheme. The
notional superannuation expense is disclosed at note 4 'Employee Benefits Expense'.

(c) Where the Treasurer or other entity has assumed a liability, the Authority
recognises revenues equivalent to the amount of the liability assumed and an expense
relating to the nature of the events or events that initially gave rise to the liability.
From 1 July 2002 non-discretionary non-reciprocal transfers of net assets (restructuring
of administrative arrangements) have been classified as Contributions by Owners
(CBOs) under TI 955 and are taken directly to equity. Discretionary transfers of assets
between State Government agencies are reported as assets assumed/(transferred)
under Income from State Government.

(d) Where assets or services have been received free of charge or for nominal
consideration, the Authority recognises revenues (except where the contribution of
assets or services is in the nature of contributions by owners, in which case the
Authority shall make a direct adjustment to equity) equivalent to the fair value of the
assets and/or the fair value of those services than can be reliably determined and which
would have been purchased if not donated, and those fair values shall be recognised as
assets or expenses as applicable.
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2006/07 2005/06
$'000 $'000

13. Receivables
Current
Receivables 382 408
Allowance for impairment of receivables (35) (72)
GST receivable 222 57
Prepayments 6 9

575 402

14. Amounts Receivable for Services
Current 400 400
Non-current 3,944 3,286

4,344 3,686

Represents the non-cash component of service appropriations (see note 2(m))
'Amounts Receivable for Services (Holding Account)'. It is restricted in that it can only
be used for asset replacement or payment of leave liability.

15. Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Non-current
Rural Boarding Scholarship Account 42 41

42 41

The purpose of the account is to hold security monies deposited by scholarship
holders. On completion of a teaching qualification, the funds in the trust account will
be refunded to the successful scholarship recipient.

16. Property, Plant and Equipment
Freehold land
At fair value (a) 529 634

529 634
Buildings
At fair value (a) 29,085 26,956
Accumulated depreciation - (669)

29,085 26,287

Buildings under construction
At cost 6,008 620

Plant and Equipment
Office equipment at cost 342 321
Accumulated depreciation (283) (243)

59 78



AANNNNUUAALL RREEPPOORRTT 22000066--22000077

57

2006/07 2005/06
$'000 $'000

Plant, equipment and furniture at cost 921 851
Accumulated depreciation (615) (508)

306 343
365 421

Vehicles
Buses and mobile equipment at cost 1,178 939
Accumulated depreciation (910) (919)

268 20
36,255 27,982

(a) Freehold land and buildings were revalued as at 1 July 2006 by the Western
Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services). The valuations were
performed during the year ended 30 June 2007 and recognised at 30 June 2007. In
undertaking the revaluation, fair value was determined by reference to market
values for land: $528,700 and buildings: $29,085,000. '

To ensure the valuations provided by Valuation Services were compliant at 30
June 2007 with the fair value requirements under AASB 116, Valuation Services
provided the Department of Treasury and Finance (DTF) with information that
tracked the general movement in the market value of land and in building
constructions from the 1 July 2006 (the date of valuation) to 31 March 2007. DTF
reviewed the information and determined that the valuations provided by
Valuation Services (as at 1 July 2006) were compliant with fair value requirements
for 30 June 2007 reporting without further adjustment.
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Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant, equipment and vehicles at
the beginning and end of the reporting period are set out below.

Freehold
Land

Buildings Buildings
Under

Construction

Plant &
Equipment

Vehicles Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2007

Carrying amount at
start of year

634 26,287 620 421 20 27,982

Additions - 529 5,388 91 294 6,302

Disposals - - - - (13) (13)

Revaluation changes (105) 2,988 - - - 2,883

Depreciation - (719) - (147) (33) (899)

Carrying amount at
end of year

529 29,085 6,008 365 268 36,255

2006

Carrying amount at
start of year

946 25,258 - 315 74 26,593

Additions - 209 620 230 - 1,059

Disposals (345) (124) - - - (469)

Revaluation changes 33 1,613 - - - 1,646

Depreciation - (669) - (124) (54) (847)

Carrying amount at
end of year

634 26,287 620 421 20 27,982
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2006/07 2005/06
$'000 $'000

17. Payables
Current
Trade payables 170 171
Non-current
Scholarship bonds 42 41

212 212

18. Borrowings
Current
WATC loans 670 675

670 675

Non-current
WATC loans 10,799 11,313

10,799 11,313

19. Provisions
Current
Employee benefits provision
Annual leave (a) 212 179
Long service leave (b) 229 240

441 419

Other provisions

Employment on-costs (c) 2 2

443 421

Non-current
Employee benefits provision

Long service leave (b) 197 170

Other provisions

Employment on-costs (c) 1 1

198 171

(a) Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after balance sheet
date. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities will occur as
follows:

Within 12 months of balance sheet date 212 179
More than 12 months after balance sheet date - -

212 179
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(b) Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after balance sheet
date. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities will occur as
follows:

2006/07 2005/06
$'000 $'000

Within 12 months of balance sheet date 229 240
More than 12 months after balance sheet date 197 170

426 410

(c) The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the
payment of employment on-costs including workers' compensation premiums.
The provision is the present value of expected future payments. The associated
expense is included in 'Other Expenses'.

Movements in Other Provisions
Movements in each class of provisions during the financial year, other than employee
benefits, are set out below:

Employment on-cost provision
Carrying amount at start of year 3 3
Additional provisions recognised - -
Payments/other sacrifices of economic benefits - -

Carrying amount at end of year 3 3

20. Income Received in Advance
Current
Boarding fees (a) 373 330

373 330

(a) Income received in advance relates to boarding fees received to 30 June 2007, for
goods and services that will be provided to students in financial year 2007-08.
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2006/07 2005/06
$'000 $'000

21. Other Liabilities
Accrued interest 196 193
Accrued salaries 18 63

214 256

22. Equity

Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of the Authority. The
Government holds the equity interest in the Authority on behalf of the community.
The asset revaluation reserve represents that portion of equity resulting from the
revaluation of non-current assets.

Contributed equity
Balance at start of year 3,850 2,171
Contributions by owners - Capital contribution (a) 6,570 2,029
Distribution to owner (b)(c) - (350)
Balance at end of year 10,420 3,850

(a) Capital contributions (appropriations) and non-discretionary (non-reciprocal)
transfers of net assets from other State government agencies have been designated
as contributions by owners in Treasurer’s Instruction TI 955 ‘Contributions by 
Owners Made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities’ and are credited directly to
equity.

(b) UIG Interpretation 1038 ‘Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-owned Public
Sector Entities requires that where the transferee accounts for a transfer as a
contribution by owner, the transferor must account for the transfer as a
distribution to owners. Consequently, non discretionary (non-reciprocal) transfers
of net assets to other State government agencies are distribution to owners and are
debited directly to equity.

(c) TI 955 requires non-reciprocal transfers of net assets to Government to be
accounted for as distribution to owners.

Reserves
Asset Revaluation Reserve
Balance at start of year 9,386 7,740
Net revaluation increments/(decrements):
Land (105) 33
Buildings 2,988 1,613
Balance at end of year 12,269 9,386

Accumulated surplus
Balance at start of year 9,411 8,055
Result for the period 2,966 1,356
Balance at end of year 12,377 9,411
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23. Notes to the Cash Flow Statement

Reconciliation of cash
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Cash Flow Statement is reconciled
to the related items in the Balance Sheet as follows :

2006/07 2005/06
$'000 $'000

Cash and cash equivalents 6,759 3,914
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (refer Note 15) 42 41

6,801 3,955

Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows provided by/(used in) operating
activities

Net cost of services (3,691) (3,868)
Non-cash items:
Resources received free of charge (note 12) 51 13
Depreciation (note 5) 899 847
Gain on sale of non current assets (note 11) (13) (6)
Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer (note 12) (1) 8
Contribution from Catholic Education Office (note 10) (1,649) (551)

(Increase)/decrease in assets:
Receivables (173) (124)
Other assets - -

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:
Payables (1) (5)
Other liabilities (42) 56
Income received in advance 43 (93)
Provisions 49 (133)

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (4,528) (3,856)

Non Cash Financing and Investing Activities
During the year, the Authority received a contribution from the Catholic Education
Office of $1.6m for the construction of the Broome Residential College. The
contribution was paid by the Catholic Education Office directly to the supplier; hence,
this contribution has not been reflected in the Cash Flow Statement.
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24. Impairment of Assets
There were no indications of impairment to property, plant and equipment at 30 June
2007.

The Authority held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during
the reporting period and at reporting date there were no intangible assets not yet
available for use.

All surplus assets at 30 June 2007 have either been classified as assets held for sale or
written off.

25. Commitments

Capital expenditure commitments

Capital expenditure commitments, being contracted capital
expenditure additional to the amounts reported in the
financial statements, are payable as follows:

2006/07 2005/06
$'000 $'000

Within 1 year 17,900 14,700
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 3,300 4,700
Later than 5 years - -

21,200 19,400

The capital commitments include amounts for Buildings:
21,200 19,400

Lease commitments

Commitments in relation to leases contracted for at the
reporting date but not recognised as liabilities are payable:

Within 1 year 30 4
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 30 -
Later than 5 years - -

60 4

Representing:
Non-cancellable operating leases 60 4

The non-cancellable operating lease commitments relate to three motor vehicles, which
expire in August 2009 and the lease of a TAFE facility in Albany at $7,000 per annum
which ceases in January 2009.
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26. Events Occurring after Reporting Date

There have been no material events occurring after 30 June 2007 as defined by the
Accounting Standards (AASB 110.3).

27. Contingent Assets and Liabilities

No contingent assets or liabilities exist as at 30 June 2007.

28. Explanatory Statement

Significant variations between estimates and actual results for income and expenses
are shown below. Significant variations are considered to be those greater than 10%
and $100,000.

Significant variances between estimated and actual result for 2007

Estimated
Actual

2007
$000

Actual
2007
$000

Variance
$000

Depreciation expense 1,039 899 (140)
Due to delay in construction of Broome
Residential College.

Significant variance between actual results for 2006 and 2007

2007 2006 Variance
$000 $000 $000

Capital user charge 1,836 1,363 473
Employee benefits expense 4,932 4,305
Other revenue 2,214 1,117

627
1,097

Capital user charge - Due to significant increase in asset revaluation reserve in 2005/06
and the construction of the Broome Residential College. Capital user charge will be
abolished in 2007/08.

Employee benefits expense –Due to the commencement of the new City Beach
Residential College in February 2007 and some initial employee expenses at Broome.
The Broome Residential college will open on the 23rd July 2007. A manager was
employed in December 2006.

Other revenue–Due to the increased contribution from the Catholic Education Office
towards the construction of the Broome Residential College. In 2005/06, the Catholic
Education Office contributed $551,094. In 2006/07 the figure was $1,648,906, a total of
$2.2m towards the first stage on this project.
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29 Financial Instruments

(a) Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
Financial instruments held by the Authority are cash and cash equivalents, receivables,
payables and borrowings. The Authority has limited exposure to financial risks. The
Authority's overall risk management program focuses on managing the risks identified
below.

Credit Risk
The Authority trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. The Authority
has policies in place to ensure that sales of products and services are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Authority's exposure to bad
debts is minimal. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk.

Liquidity Risk
The Authority has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows including
drawdowns of appropriations by monitoring forecast cash flows to ensure that
sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments.

Cash flow interest rate risk
The Authority's exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily
to the long term debt obligations. The Authority's borrowings are all obtained through
the Western Australian Treasury Corporation (WATC) and are at fixed rates with
varying maturities. The risk is managed by WATC through portfolio diversification
and variation in maturity dates.

(b) Financial Instrument disclosures
The following table details the Authority’s exposure to interest rate risk as at the 
balance sheet date:
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(a) Interest Rate Risk Exposure

The following table details the Authority's exposure to interest rate risk, as at the reporting
date:

Weighted
average
effective

interest rate

Variable
interest

rate
Fixed interest rate maturities

Non
interest
bearing Total

2007 % $'000

Within
1 year
$'000

1 to 2
years
$'000

2 to 3
years
$'000

3 to 4
years
$'000

4 to 5
years
$'000

More
than 5
years
$'000 $’000 $’000

Financial Assets
Cash and cash
equivalents 6% 1,099 - - - - - - 5,660 6,759

Restricted cash &
cash equivalents 6% 42 - - - - - - - 42

Receivables - - - - - - - - 347 347

Amounts
receivable
for services - - - - - - - - 4,344 4,344

1,141 - - - - - - 10,351 11,492

Financial Liabilities
Payables - - - - - - - - 212 212

WATC Loans 6.1% - 670 890 910 910 910 7,179 - 11,469

Other liabilities 6.1% 196 - - - - - - 18 214

196 670 890 910 910 910 7,179 230 11,895
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Weighted
average
effective

interest rate

Variable
interest

rate
Fixed interest rate maturities

Non
interest
bearing Total

2006 % $'000

Within
1 year
$'000

1 to 2
years
$'000

2 to 3
years
$'000

3 to 4
years
$'000

4 to 5
years
$'000

More
than 5
years
$'000 $’000 $’000

Financial Assets
Cash and cash
equivalents 4.9% 1,009 - - - - - - 2,905 3,914

Restricted cash &
cash equivalents 4.9% 41 - - - - - - - 41

Receivables - - - - - - - - 336 336

Amounts
receivable
for services - - - - - - - - 3,686 3,686

1,050 - - - - - - 6,927 7,977

Financial Liabilities
Payables - - - - - - - - 212 212

WATC Loans 5.8% - 675 770 850 910 910 7,873 - 11,988

Other liabilities 5.8% - 193 - - - - - 63 256

- 868 770 850 910 910 7,873 275 12,456

(b) All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet, whether they are carried at
cost or fair value, are recognised at amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of fair
value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes.
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30. Remuneration of members of the Accountable Authority and senior officers

Remuneration of Members of the Accountable Authority 2006/07 2005/06
$000 $000

The number of members of the Accountable Authority whose total
fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other
benefits for the financial year, fall within the following bands are:

$
0 - 10,000 5 5

The total remuneration of the members of the Accountable
Authority is: 11 10

The superannuation included here represents the superannuation
expense incurred by the Authority in respect of members of the
Accountable Authority

No members of the Authority are members of the Pension Scheme.

Remuneration of Senior Officers

The number of Senior Officers, other than those reported as
members of the Accountable Authority, whose total fees, salaries,
superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits for the
financial year, fall within the following bands are:

$
100,000 - 110,000 1 1

The total remuneration of senior officers is: 107 104

The superannuation included here represents the superannuation
expense incurred by the Authority in respect of Senior Officers other
than senior officers reported as members of the Accountable
Authority.

No senior officers are members of the Pension Scheme.
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31. Remuneration of Auditor

Remuneration to the Auditor General for the financial year is as
follows:

Auditing the accounts, financial statements and performance
indicators. 30 38

32. Supplementary Financial Information

Write-offs
During the 2006/07 financial year $49,812 worth of boarding fees
due to the State were written off:

The Accountable Authority 50 29

50 29

Losses through theft, defaults and other causes
Losses of public moneys and public and other property through
theft or default
Amounts recovered

-
-

-
-
-

Gifts of public property
Gifts of public property provided by the Authority - -




